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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of GHL Pharma & Diagnostic Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of GHL Pharma & Diagnostic Private Limited (‘the Company’),
which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2025, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other
Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Cash Flow and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended,
and notes to the financial statements, including material accounting policy information and other explanatory
information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid financial
statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) in the manner so required and give a
true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS’) specified under section 133 of the
Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and other accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2025, and its loss (including othet comprehensive
income), its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (TCAT’) together with the ethical requitements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the rules thereunder, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

Independent Auditor’s Report to the members of GHL Pharma & Diagnostic Private Limited on the financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2025 (cont’d)

Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the Ditrectors’ report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing
so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

The Directots’ repott is not made available to us at the date of this auditor’s report. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

The accompanying financial statements have been approved by the Company’s Board of Directors. The Company’s
Board of Directors ate responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation
and presentation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
petformance including other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance
with the Ind AS specified under section 133 of the Act and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act
for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection
and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
and design, implementation and maintenance of adequaté internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or
has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Boartd of Ditectors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Out objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or etror, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
Standatrds on Auditing will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the

economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, specified under section 143(10) of the Act we exercise
ptofessional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:
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Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

Independent Auditor’s Repott to the members of GHL Pharma & Diagnostic Private Limited on the financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2025 (cont’d)

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and petform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
approptiate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
mistepresentations, or the override of internal control;

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act we are also responsible for expressing our
opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls;

e FEvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management;

e Conclude on the appropriateness of Board of Directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a matetial uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Company to cease to continue as a going concern; and

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statements represent the undetlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

10. We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

11. As required by section 197(16) of the Act, based on our audit, we report that the Company has paid remuneration to
its directors duting the year in accordance with the provisions of and limits laid down under section 197 read with
Schedule V to the Act.

12. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (‘the Order’) issued by the Central Government of India
in terms of section 143(11) of the Act we give in the Annexure A a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3

and 4 of the Otdet, to the extent applicable.

13. Further to our comments in Annexure A, as required by section 143(3) of the Act based on our audit, we report, to the
extent applicable, that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief
were necessaty for the putpose of our audit of the accompanying financial statements;

b) Except for the matters stated in paragraph 13(h)(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit
and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been

kept by the Company so fat as it appears from our examination of those books;

¢) The financial statements dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of account;
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the members of GHL Pharma & Dlagnostlc Private Limited on the financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2025 (cont’d)

d

¢)

g

h)

In out opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with Ind AS specified under section 133 of the Act;

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors and taken on record by the Board of
Ditectors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms
of section 164(2) of the Act;

The qualification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith are as stated in
paragraph 13(b) above on reporting under section 143(3)(b) of the Act and paragraph 13(h)(vi) below on reporting
under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended);

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the
Company as on 31 March 2025 and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in
Annexure B wherein we have expressed an unmodified opinion; and

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

1. The Company does not have any pending litigation which would impact its financial position as at
31 March 2025;

1. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any
material foreseeable losses as at 31 March 2025;

1. Thete wete no amounts which were requited to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Company during the year ended 31 March 2025;

iv. a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in note 46(1v) to
the financial statements, no funds have been advanced ot loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds
ot securities premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any person(s) or
entity(ies), including foreign entities (‘the intermediaries’), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons
or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (‘the Ultimate Beneficiaries’)
ot provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in note 46(v) to
the financial statements, no funds have been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies),
including foreign entities (‘the Funding Parties’), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Company shall, whether directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (‘Ultimate Beneficiaries’) or
provide any guarantee, secutity or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

¢) Based on such audit procedures performed as considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances,
nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the management representations under

sub-clauses (a) and (b) above contain any material misstatement.

v.  The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year ended 31 March 2025; and
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Independent Auditor’s Repott to the members of GHL Pharma & Diagnostic Private Limited on the financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2025 (cont’d)

vi.  As stated in note 44 to the financial statements and based on our examination which included test checks,
the Company, in respect of financial year commencing on 01 April 2024, has used an accounting softwate
for maintaining its books of account which have a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the
same have been operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software except
that, audit trail feature was not enabled at the database level for accounting software to log any direct data
changes. Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature
being tampered with other than the consequential impact of the exception given above. Furthermore, other
than the consequential impact of the exception given above, the audit trail has been preserved by the
Company as per the statutory requirements for record retention.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

doa
\‘}\Q‘\\N S\k

Madhu Sudan Malpani

Partner

Membership No.: 517440

UDIN: 25517440BMLKDS4049 o

Place: Gurugram
Date: 14 May 2025
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Annexure A referred to in paragraph 12 of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of
GHL Pharma & Diagnostic Private Limited on the standalone financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2025

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and the books of account and
records examined by us in the normal course of audit, and to the best of our knowledge and belief, we report that:

(i) () (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details

(iD)

(1)

(i)

v)

(b)

(©

(d)

(¢

()

(b)

and situation of property, plant and equipment, capital work-in-progress and relevant details of right-of-
use assets.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets and
intangible assets under development.

The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its property, plant and equipment,
capital work-in-progress and relevant details of right-of-use assets under which the assets are physically
verified in a phased manner over a petiod of three yeats, which in our opinion, is reasonable having regard
to the size of the Company and the natute of its assets. In accordance with this programme, certain
property, plant and equipment, capital work-in-progress and relevant details of right-of-use assets wete
verified during the year and no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

The Company does not own any immovable property (other than properties where the Company is the
lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee). Accordingly, reporting under
clause 3(i)(c) of the Otrder is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has adopted cost model for its property, plant and equipment (including right-of-use assets)
and intangible assets. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(i)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any benami property
under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 (as amended) and rules made
thereundet.

The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable intervals during the year.
In our opinion, the coverage and procedure of such verification by the management is appropriate and
no discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate for each class of inventory were noticed as compared
to book records.

The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits by banks or financial institutions on the basis of
security of current assets at any point of time during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ii)(b) of the
Otdet is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not made any investment in, provided any guarantee or security or granted any loans
ot advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability
Partnerships (LLPs) ot any other parties during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(iii) of the
Otdet is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not entered into any transaction covered under sections 185 and 186 of the Act. Accordingly,
reporting under clause 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
accepted any deposits ot thete are no amounts which have been deemed to be deposits within the meaning
of sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended).
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

W,
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Annexure A refetred to in Paragraph 12 of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of
GHL Pharma & Diagnostic Private Limited on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Cont’d)

(v)

(vii)(a)

(b)

(viif)

(ix) (a)

(b)

(©

@

® @

(b)

(xi) (@)

The Central Government has not specified maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of section
148 of the Act, in respect of Company’s business activities. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(vi) of
the Otder is not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, undisputed statutory dues
including goods and setvices tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax,
setvice tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other material statutory dues, as
applicable, have generally been regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities by the Company,
though there have been slight delays in a few cases. Further, no undisputed amounts payable in respect
thereof were outstanding at the yeat-end for a period of more than six months from the date they became
payable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, we report that there are no statutory dues
referred to in subclause (2) above that have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on
account of any dispute.

Accotding to the information and explanations given to us, we report that no transactions were
surrendered or disclosed as income duting the year in the tax assessments under the Income-tax Act, 1961
(43 of 1961) which have not been previously recorded in the books of accounts.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
defaulted in repayment of its loans ot borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

According to the information and explanations given to us including representation received from the
management of the Company, and on the basis of our audit procedures, we report that the Company has
not been declared a willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government
authority.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, money raised by way of
term loans were applied for the purposes for which these were obtained, though idle/surplus funds which
wete not required for immediate utilisation have been invested in readily realisable liquid investments.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not raised any
funds on short term basis duting the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ix)(d) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, we report that the Company does not have any
subsidiaries, associates ot joint ventutes. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ix)(e) and clause 3(ix)(f) of the
Otder is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt
instruments), during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the recotds
of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or (fully,
partially ot optionally) convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the
Otder is not applicable to the Company.

To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the
Company ot no fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the period coveted by our audit.

W
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" Annexure A referred to in Paragraph 12 of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of
GHL Pharma & Diagnostic Private Limited on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Cont’d)

(b)

©

(xiv) (2)

(b)

(xvi)(2)

@

According to the information and explanations given to us including the representation made to us by the
management of the Company, no report under sub-section 12 of section 143 of the Act has been filed by the
auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, with the
Central Government for the petriod covered by our audit.

According to the information and explanations given to us including the representation made to us by the
management of the Company, there are no whistle-blower complaints received by the Company during the yeat.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it. Accordingly, reporting
under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, all transactions entered into by
the Company with the related parties are in compliance with section 188 of the Act, where applicable. Further,
the details of such related party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements, as required under
Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 24, Related Party Disclosures specified in Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules 2015 as prescribed under section 133 of the Act. Further, according to the information and
explanations given to us, the Company is not required to constitute an audit committee under section 177 of the

Act.

Accotding to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not required to have an internal audit
system as pet the provisions of section 138 of the Act. Howevet, the Company has an internal audit system
which, in our opinion, is commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

We have considered the reports issued by the Internal Auditors of the Company till date for the period under
audit.

According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not entered into any non-cash
transactions with its directors or petsons connected with its directors and accordingly, reporting under clause
3(xv) of the Order with respect to compliance with the provisions of section 192 of the Act ate not applicable
to the Company.

The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-TA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.
Accordingly, reporting under clauses 3(xvi)(a), (b) and (c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

Based on the information and explanations given to us and as represented by the management of the Company,
the Group (as defined in Cote Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) does not have any CIC.

The Company has incurred cash losses in the current financial year and in the immediately preceding financial
years amounting to Rs. 115.05 millions and Rs. 120.71 millions respectively.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause
3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and
expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information in the
financial statements, our knowledge of the plans of the Board of Directors and management and based on our
examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to
believe that any material uncettainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that Company is not
capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of
one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of
the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we
neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the
balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due. '

L)
Chartered Accountants W



Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

Annexute A referred to in Paragraph 12 of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the membets of
GHL Pharma & Diagnostic Private Limited on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Cont’d)

(xx)  According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not meet the ctitetia as specified
under sub-section (1) of section 135 of the Act read with the Companies (Cotporate Social Responsibility Policy)
Rules, 2014 and according, repotting under clause 3(xx) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xxi)  The reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of standalone financial
statements of the Company. Accordingly, no comment has been included in respect of said clause under this
report.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

Gud o™
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Madhu Sudan Malpani
Partner

Membership No.: 517440
UDIN: 25517440BMLKIDS4049

Place: Gurugram
Date: 14 May 2025
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of GHL Pharma & Diagnostic
Private Limited on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

Annexure B

Independent Auditor’s Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the financial statements under
Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’)

In conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of GHL Pharma & Diagnostic Private Limited (‘the Company’)
as at and for the year ended 31 March 2025, we have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company as at that date.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on
the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements critetia established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting (‘Guidance Note’) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (TCAT). These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
opetating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of the Company’s business, including adherence to
the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under
the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Out responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an
audit of intetnal financial controls with reference to financial statements, and the Guidance Note issued by the ICAL
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assutance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Out audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements includes obtaining an understanding of such internal financial controls, assessing the
risk that a matetial weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed tisk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whethet due to fraud or etror.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion
on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements .

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes
in accotdance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements include those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. N
q
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of GHL Pharma & Diagnostic
Private Limited on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025 (cont’d)

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to etror or fraud may
occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion
In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements and such controls were operating effectively as at 31 Matrch 2025, based on the internal financial controls with

reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note issued by ICAL

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chatrtered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

'
Qud®
Madhu Sudan Malpani
Partner
Membership No.: 517440 M -
UDIN: 25517440BMLKDS4049

Place: Gurugram
Date: 14 May 2025

Chartered Accountants



GHL Pharma & Diagnostic Private Limited

Balance sheet as at 31 March 2025

(All amounts are in T millions, unless othenwise stated)

Particulars Notes As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and cquipment 6 A 82.98 35.41
Capital work-in-progress 6 A -
Right of usc asscts 6B 57.29
Intangible asscts 7A +98
Intangible asscts under development 7B -
Iinancial asscts
Other financral assets 8 A +.77 1.66
Income-tax asscts (net) 10 2.85 0.30
Other non-current assets 11 A 0.89 1.69
Total non-current assets 231.71 101.33
Current assets
Inventories 12 106.16 50.93
Iinancial assets
‘I'rade recetvables 13 17.08 7:55
Cash and cash equivalents 14 97.03 62.94
Bank balances other than cash and cash cquivalents 15 0.76 23.96
Other financial asscts 8B 1.11 0.96
Orther current assets 1nB 10.78 12.66
Total current assets 232.92 159.00
Total asscts ‘ 464.63 260.33
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
liquity shate capital 16 A 100.10 10010
Other equity 16 B (285.47) (152.52)
Total equity (185.37) (52.42)
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
I“inancial liabilitics
Borrowings 17 A 216.67 83.33
I.case labilities 18 A 12343 48.65
Other financial liabilities 21 A +08 210
Provisions 19 A 6.19 299
Other non-current liabilities 22 A .52 0.34
Total non-current liabilities 350.89 137.41
Current liabilities
I“inancial liabilitics
Borrowings 17 B 66.67 16.67
T.case habilities 18 B 13.61 1245
‘T'rade pavables
‘Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 20 A 53.07 41.63
‘Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 20 B 1:41.22 91.35
Other financial liabilities 21 B 12.68 8.50
Other current liabilities 2B 9.32 +65
Provisions 9B 054 009
Total current liabilities 299.11 175.34
464.63 260.33

Total equity and liabilities

‘I'he accompanying notes to the financial statements including a matcrial accounting policy information and other explanatory information arc an integral part of these financial statements.

"T'his is the balance sheet re

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants

lirm's Registration No.: 001076N/N300013

o™
\\bakﬂ g /°-

Madhu Sudan Malpani
Partner
Membership No.: 517440

Place: Gurugram
Date: 14 May 2025

rred to in our report of even date.

Pankaj Sahni
Director
JDIN:07132999|

Place: Gurugram
Date: 14 May 2025

he Board ofDirectorsO

[DIN:08943708]

Place: Gurugram
Date: 14 May 2025

Place: Gurugram
Date: 14 May 20

v a'/
Mahak Chawla
Company Sccretary
Membership No.: 61643

Place: Gurugram
Date: 14 May 2025



GHL Pharma & Diagnostic Private Limited
Statement of profit and loss for the year ended 31 March 2025
(All amounts are in ¥ millions, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Notes
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 : 31 March 2024

Income
Revenue from operations 23 1,064.38 215.73
Other income 24 5317, 1.60
Total income 1,069.55 217.33
Expenses - .
Cost of materials consumed 25 A 38.35 14.80
Purchases of stock-in-trade 25B 520.72 85.27
Changes in inventories of stock-in-trade 25C (53.77) (45.02)
Employee benefits expense 26 183.76 99.31
Finance costs 27 30.27 9.51
Depreciation and amortisation expense 28 2836 16.70
Retainership fees 29 11.01 3.23
QOutsourced services 30 198.24 103.11
Other expenses 31 246.07 60.41
Total expenses . 1,203.01 347.32
Loss before tax (133.46) ' (129.99)

Tax expenses 32 - -
Loss after tax (133.46) (129.99)
Other comprehensive income
Ttems that will not be reclassified to statement of profit or loss

Re-measurement gain on defined benefit plans . 0.51 0.47
Total other comprehensive income . 0.51 0.47
Total comprehensive income for the year (132.95) (129.52)
Earnings per equity share 33

Basic and diluted () (13.33) (12.99)

The accompanying notes to the financial statements including a material accounting policy information and other explanatory information arc an integral part of these financial statements.

This is the statement of profit and loss referred to in our report of even date.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directo
Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registration No.: 001076N/N500013
w Sudet .
Vol — ) o=
Madhu Sudan Malpani ankaj Sahni j Kumar Jha Mahak Chawla
Partner Director Director ; Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Membership No.: 517440 \M ! [DIN:07132999] [DIN:08943708] Membership No.: 61643
Place: Gurugram Place: Gurugram Place: Gurugram Place: Gurugram Place: Gurugram

Date: 14 May 2025 Date: 14 May 2025 Date: 14 May 2025 Date: 14 May 2025 Date: 14 May 2025




GHL Pharma & Diagnostic Private Limited
Statement of cash flow for the year ended 31 March 2025

(Allamounts are m T millions, unless otherwise stated)

Particular ) For the Year ended For the Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

A CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Loss before tax (133.46) (129.99)

Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortisation expense (refer note 28) 16.70

Interest income (refer note 245 0.92)

I'inance costs (refer note 27) ‘).51’

ixpected credit loss on trade recetvables (refer note 31) 0.31 -
Operating loss before working capital changes (78.14) (104.70)
Movement in working capital

Inventories (35.23) (30.23)

‘I'rade recervables (9.84) (747)

Other current assets 1.88 (11.71)

Other financial assets (5.08) (1.86)

‘Trade payables 61.31

Other financial liabilities 223

Provisions +16

Other current and non-current labilitics . 5.10
Cash used in operations (73.61) (34.64)

Income-tax paid (net of refund) (2.53) (0.30)
Net cash used in operating activities (A) (76.14) (34.99)

B CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property plant and cquipment, capital work-m-progress. mtangible assets and mtangible assets under development (including 59.18 (41.18)
capital advances and capital ereditors)
Movement in bank deposits (net 23.00 (23.96)
Interest received (refer note 24) 2.85 0.57
Net cash used in investing activities (B) (33.33) (64.57)
C CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from long-term loan from Holding Company (refer note 17) 200.00 100.00
Repayment of long-term loan from Holding Company (refer note 17) (16.66) -
Interest paid on borrowings (refer note 17) (16.86) (2.77)
Other borrowing costs paid (refer note 27) (0.13) (0.07)
Interest paid on lease liabilities (refer note 27) (13.04) (6.54)
Payment of principal portion of lease liabilities (9.75) (7.20)
Net cash flows from financing activities (C) 143.56 83.42
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 34.09 (16.09)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 62.94 79.03
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 97.03 62.94

Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents (refer note 14)

Balances with banks m current accounts 94.87 +41.27

Cash on hand 2.16 1.60

Bank deposits with original maturity of less than three months - 20.07
97.03 62.94

Non-cash investing activities

Acquisition of right of use assets (refer note 6B) 90.21 10.30

Depreciation on right of use asscts capitalised to capital work-in-progress (refer note 68) 6.85 -
97.06 10.30

The "Statement of cash flow” has been prepared as per the Indirect method as set out in Ind AS 7, "Statement of Cash Flows".

"The accompanying notes to the financial statements including a material accounting policy mformation and other explanatory information are an integral part of these financial statements.
“This is the statement of cash flow referred to in our report of even date.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered \ccountants
Iiirm's Registration No.: 001076N/N3500013

Sudet . .
dwr
\‘kb ( —
Madhu Sudan Malpani aj Sahni P Kumar Jha Mahak Chawla
Partner W Director Chief Financial Officer  Company Sccretary
Membership No.: 517440 L ! [DIN:07132999] Membership No.: 61643
Place: Gurugram Place: Gurugram Place: Gurugram Place: Gurugram Place: Gurugram

Date: 4 Nay 2025 Date: 14 May 2025 Date: [+ \May 2025 Date: 14 \ay 2025 Date: 14 NMay 2025
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GHL Pharma & Diagnostic Private Limited
Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 March 2025

(Al amounts are in T millions, unless otherwise stared)

A Equity share capital*

Particulars Opening balance as at

Changes in equity share

Balance as at

Changes in equity share

Balance as at

01 April 2023 capital during the year 31 March 2024 capital during the year 31 March 2025
Fquity share capital 100.10 - 100.10 - 100.10
B Other equity**
Particulars Reserves and surplus Total
Retained earnings

Opening balance as at 01 April 2023 (23.00) (23.00)
Loss for the year (129.99) (129.99)
Other comprehensive income

Re-measurement gain on defined benefit plans 047 047
Total comprehensive income for the year (129.52) (129.52)
Balance as at 31 March 2024 (152.52) (152.52)
Loss for the year (133.46) (133.46)
Other comprehensive income

Re-measurement gain on defined bencfit plans 0.51 0.51
Total comprehensive income for the year (132.95) (132.95)
Balance as at 31 March 2025 (285.47) (285.47)

*Refer note 16A for details.

“+Refer note 16B for details.

I'he accompanying notes to the financial statements including a material accounting policy information and other explanatory information are an integral part of these financial statements.

This 1s the statement of changes in equity referred to in our report of even date.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.: 001076N/N300013

padhe S22

Madhu Sudan Malpani
Partner
Membership No.: 517440

Place: Gurugram
Date: 14 May 2025

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

ankaj Sahni
Director
[DIN:07132999]

Place: Gurugram
Date: 14 May 2025

[DIN:08943708]

Place: Gurugram
Date: 14 May 2025

Chicef [Financial Officer

Place: Gurugram
Date: 14 May 2025

!

Mahak Chawla
Company Sccretary
Membership No.: 61643

Place: Gurugram
Date: 14 May 2025
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GHL Pharma & Diagnostic Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

Background

GHL Pharma & Diagnostic Private Limited (‘the Company’) is a subsidiary of Global Health Limited was incorporated
as on 29 June 2022 under the provision of the companies Act 2013. The Company is primarily engaged in the business
of providing lab testing facilities and trading of pharmacy and other medical consumables. The Company is domiciled in
India and its registered office is situated at E — 18, Defence Colony, New Delhi — 110024.

General information and statement of compliance with Ind AS

The financial statements comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (hereinafter referred to as the
‘Ind AS’) as notified by Ministry of Cotporate Affairs under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) read
with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015, as amended and other relevant provisions of the Act.

The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025 were authorized and approved for issue by the Board of
Directors on 14 May 2025. The tevision to financial statements is permitted by Board of Directors after obtaining
necessary approvals or at the instance of regulatory authorities as per provisions of the Act. '

Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on going concetn basis in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in India. Further, the financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis except for certain security
deposit and financial liabilities which are measured at fair value.

Recent accounting pronouncement

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015, as issued from time to time.

(i) Ind AS 117 - Insurance contracts

MCA amended the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 vide notification dated 12 August 2024 and
outlined scenarios where Ind AS 117 — ‘Insurance Contracts’. These include warranties from manufacturers, dealers, or
retailers related to goods ot setvices and employer obligations from employee benefit plans. It also excludes retitement
benefit obligations from defined benefit plans and contractual rights or obligations tied to future use of non-financial
items, such as certain license fees and vatiable lease payments. However, the Company is not engaged in insurance
contracts, hence do not have any impact on the financial statements.

(ii) Amendments to Ind AS 116

MCA amended Ind AS 116 vide its notification dated 09 September 2024 related to accounting for sale and leaseback
transactions in the books of seller and lessee. The amendment requires seller-lessee to determine ‘lease payments’ or
‘revised lease payments’ in a way that the seller-lessee would not recognize any amounts of the gain or loss that relates
to the right-of-use retained by the seller-lessee. These rules aim to streamline accounting processes and ensure compliance
with updated Ind AS requirements. However, the Company is not engaged in sale and lease back transaction, hence do
not have any impact on the financial statements.

Material accounting policies

The financial statements have been prepared using the material accounting policy information and measurement bases
summarised below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the yeats presented, unless otherwise stated.

Current versus non-current classification

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s operating cycle and other
criteria set out in Division II of Schedule III of the Act. Based on the natutre of the operations and the tjme between the
acquisition of assets for processing/ servicing and their realisation in cash or cash equivalents, the-Company has
ascertained its operating cycle as twelve months for the purpose of cutrent/non-current classification offassets and

liabilities.
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5.3

GHL Pharma & Diagnostic Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

Property, plant and equipment and capital work-in-progtess

Recognition and initial measurement

Property, plant and equipment are stated at their cost of acquisition. The cost comptises purchase price, borrowing cost
if capitalization criteria are met and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended
use. Any trade discount and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price. Property, plant and equipment
purchased on deferred payment basis are recorded at equivalent cash price. The difference between the cash price
equivalent and the total payment is recognised as interest expense over the petiod until payment is made.

Subsequent costs and disposal

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as approptiate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item
can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset is de-recognised when
replaced. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in statement of profit and loss as incurred.

Items such as spare parts, stand-by equipment and servicing equipment are recognised as property, plant and equipment
when they meet the definition of property, plant and equipment. Otherwise, such items are classified as inventory.

An item of property, plant and equipment initially recognised is de-recognised upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use. Any gain or loss atising on de-recognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is recognised in statement of profit and loss
when the asset 1s derecognised.

Capital work-in-progtess includes property, plant and equipment under construction and not ready for intended use as
on the balance sheet date.

Subsequent measurement (depreciation and useful lives)

All items of property, plant and equipment are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated deprectation and
impairment losses. Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on a straight-line basis, computed on the
basis of useful lives (as set out below). The management believes that its estimates of useful lives as given below, best
represent the period over which management expects to use assets, which is largely as per useful lives as prescribed under
Part C of Schedule IT of the Act.

Asset class Useful life
Medical equipment 5 to 15 yeats
Plant and machinery 15 years
Furniture and fixtures 10 years
Information Technology (IT) equipment | 3 to 6 years
Office equipment 5 years

Leasehold improvements are amortised over the lower of useful life and the lease term available to the Company.
The residual values, useful lives and method of depreciation are reviewed at the end of each financial year.
Intangible assets and intangible assets under development

Recognition and initial measurement . ~ .
Intangible assets (software) are stated at their cost of acquisition. The cost comprises purchase price, borrowing cost if
capitalization criteria are met and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended

use.

Intangible assets under development (software) are under development stage and not ready for intended use as on the
balance sheet date.

Subsequent measurement . /
The cost of capitalized software is amortized over a petiod of five years from the date of its acquisition.
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GHL Pharma & Diagnostic Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

De-recognition

Intangible asset is de-recognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use ot
disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is recognized in the statement of profit and loss, when the asset is
derecognised. ‘

Inventories

Inventories are valued at cost ot net realisable value, whichever is lower. Cost is calculated on weighted average basis.
Cost of these inventories comprises of all cost of purchase, taxes (except where credit is allowed) and other costs incurred
in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Cost of purchased inventory is determined after
deducting rebates and discounts.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of completion
and the estimated costs necessaty to make the sale.

Revenue recognition and other income

Revenue is recognized upon transfer of control of promised setvices to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration the Company expects to receive in exchange for those services. Revenue is measured at transaction price
net of rebates, discounts and taxes. A receivable is recognised by the Company when the control is transferred as this is
the case of point in time recognition where consideration is unconditional because only the passage of time is required.
When either party to a contract has performed, an entity shall present the contract in the balance sheet as a contract asset
or a contract liability, depending on the relationship between the entity's performance and the payment. No significant
element of financing is deemed present as the sales are either made with a nil credit term or with a credit petiod of 0-90
days. The Company applies the revenue recognition critetia to each component of the revenue transaction as set out
below.

Income from laboratory services

Revenue from laboratory services is recognized as and when related services are rendered. The Company considers the
terms of the contract and its customary business practices to determine the transaction price. The transaction price is the
amount of consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for the services, excluding amounts
collected on behalf of third parties (for example, indirect taxes).

Income from sale of pharmacy products

Revenue from pharmacy products is recognized as and when the control of products is transferred to the customer. The
Company considets its customary business practices to determine the transaction price. The transaction price is the
amount of consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for the products, excluding amounts
collected on behalf of third parties (for example, indirect taxes).

Interest income
Interest income is recorded on accrual basis using the effective interest rate (EIR) method.

Other income A
Revenue arising from revenue sharing agreements 1s recognized as per the terms of the arrangement. Rental income 1s

recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term, except for contingent rental income which is recognised when it

arises.
Leases
Company as a lessee —Right of use assets and lease liabilities

A lease is defined as ‘a contract, or part of a contract, that conveys the right to use an asset (the undetlying asset) for a
petiod of time in exchange for consideration’.

Classification of leases .
The Company entets into leasing arrangements for various assets. The assessment of the lease is based on severalfactors,

including, but not limited to, transfer of ownership of leased asset at end of lease term, lessee’s option:to ext¢nd/ pprchase

etc.



GHL Pharma & Diagnostic Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

Recognition and initial measurement of right of use assets

At lease commencement date, the Company recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability on the balance sheet. The
right-of-use asset is measured at cost, which is made up of the initial measurement of the lease liability, any initial direct
costs incurred by the Company, an estimate of any costs to dismantle and remove the asset at the end of the lease (f
any), and any lease payments made in advance of the lease commencement date (net of any incentives received).

Subsequent measurement of right of use assets

The Company depreciates the right-of-use assets on a straight-line basis from the lease commencement date to the eatlier
of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end of the lease term. The Company also assesses the right-
of-use asset for impaitment when such indicators exist.

Lease liabilities

At lease commencement date, the Company measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments unpaid
at that date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease if that rate is readily available or the Company’s
incremental botrowing rate. Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability are made up of fixed
payments (including in substance fixed payments) and vatiable payments based on an index or rate. Subsequent to initial
measurement, the liability will be reduced for payments made and increased for interest. It is re-measured to reflect any
reassessment or modification, or if there are changes in in-substance fixed payments. When the lease liability is re-
measured, the corresponding adjustment is reflected in the right-of-use asset.

The Company has elected to account for short-term leases using the practical expedients. Instead of recognising a right-
of-use asset and lease liability, the payments in relation to these short-term leases are recognised as an expense in
statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Company as a lessor
Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the tisks and rewards of ownership of an asset are

classified as operating leases. The respective leased assets ate included in the balance sheet based on their nature. Rental
income is recognized on straight-line basis over the lease-term.

5.7 Impairment of non-financial assets

5.8

Assessment is done at each balance sheet date as to whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired. For
the putpose of assessing impairment, the smallest identifiable group of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing
use that are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets, is considered as a cash
generating unit. If any such indication exists, an estimate of the recoverable amount of the asset/cash generating unit is
made. Assets whose carrying value exceeds their recoverable amount are written down to the recoverable amount.
Recoverable amount is higher of an asset’s or cash generating unit’s net selling price and its value in use. Value in use is
the present value of estimated future cash flows expected to arise from the continuing use of an asset and from its
disposal at the end of its useful life. Assessment is also done at each balance sheet date as to whether there is any
indication that an impairment loss recognised for an asset in prior accounting periods may no longer exist or may have
decreased.

Financial instrtuments

Recognition and initial measurement N
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a patty to the contractual provisions
of the financial instrument and are measured initially at fair value adjusted for transaction costs, except for those carried
at fair value through profit or loss which are measured initially at fair value. '

The classification depends on the Company’s business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual terms
of the cash flows. For assets measured at fair value, gams and losses will either be recorded in the statement of profit and
loss or other comprehensnre income. For investments in debt instruments, this will depend on the business model in
which the investment is held. For investments in equity instruments, this will depend on whether the Company has made
an irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition to account for the equity investment at fair value through other

comprehensive income (‘FVOCP).
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GHL Pharma & Diagnostic Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

Non-derivative financial assets

Subsequent measurement

Financial assets carried at amortised cost — A “financial asset’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following
conditions are met:

e The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows; and

e Contractual terms of the asset give tise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest

rate (EIR) method.

De-recognition of financial assets
A financial asset is de-recognised when the contractual rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired or the
Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset. '

Non-derivative financial liabilities

Subsequent measurement
Subsequent to initial recognition, all non-derivative financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

De-recognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is de-recognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When
an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of
an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the de-recognition of the
original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in
the statement of profit and loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to tealise the
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and
must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the
Company or the counterparty.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its financial assets and the
impairment methodology depends on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

Trade receivables

In respect of trade receivables, the Company applies the simplified approach of Ind AS 109 (provision matrix approach),
which requires measurement of loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses. Lifetime expected
credit losses are the expected credit losses that result from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial

instrument.

Other financial assets
In respect of its other financial assets, the Company assesses if the credit risk on those financial assets has increased

significantly since initial recognition. If the credit risk has not increased significantly since initial recognition, the Company
measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses, else at an amount equal to the
lifetime expected credit losses.

When making this assessment, the Company uses the change in the risk of a default occurring over the expected life of
the financial asset. To make that assessment, the Company compares, the risk of a default occurring on the financial asset
as at the balance sheet date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial asset as at the date of initial recognition
and considers reasonable and supportable information, that is available without undue cost or effort, that is indicative of
significant increases in credit risk since initial recognition. The Company assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset
has not increased significantly since initial recognition if the financial asset is determined to have low credit risk at the

balance sheet date.



GHL Pharma & Diagnostic Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

5.10 Taxes

511

Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Current and deferred tax is recognised in statement of profit and loss
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity or other comprehensive income.

The current income-tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantially enacted at the balance
sheet date. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable
tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected
to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred tax is provided in full, on temporary differences arising between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts in the financial statements. Deferred tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted
ot substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period and are expected to apply when the related deferred income
tax asset is realised or the deferred tax liability is settled. Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences and unused tax losses only if it is probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those
temporary differences and losses.

Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either
to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances
relate to the same taxation authority.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, demand deposits with the banks, other short-term highly liquid
investments with otiginal maturity of three months and less. :

5.12 Employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months
after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service are classified as short-term employee
benefits. These benefits include salaties and wages, short-term bonus, incentives etc. These are measured at the amounts
expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented as cutrent employee benefit obligations
in the balance sheet.

Defined contribution plan

Contribution towards provident fund is made to the regulatory authorities, where the Company has no further
obligations. Such benefits are classified as defined contribution plan as the Company does not catry any further
obligations, apart from the contributions made on a monthly basis. In addition, contributions are made to employees'
state insurance schemes and labour welfare fund, which are also defined contribution plans recognized and administered
by the Government of India and Haryana respectively. The Company's contributions to these schemes are expensed in
the statement of profit and loss.

Defined benefit plan »

The Company has unfunded gratuity as defined benefit plan where the amount that an employee will receive on
retirement is defined by reference to the employee’s length of service and final salary. The gratuity plan provides a lump
sum payment to vested employees at retitement, death, incapacitation or termination of employment, of an amount based
on the respective employee’s salary and the tenure of employment. The Company’s liability is actuarially determined
(using the Projected Unit Credit method) at the end of each year. This is based on standard rates of inflation, salary

growth rate and mortality.

Discount factors ate determined close to each yeat-end by reference to market yields on government bonds that have
terms to maturity approximating the tetms of the related liability. Service cost and net interest expense on the Company’s
defined benefit plan is included in employee benefits expense. Actuarial gains /losses resulting from re-measurements of
the defined benefit obligation are included in other comprehensive income.
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GHL Pharma & Diagnostic Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

Otbher long-term employee benefits

The Company also provides benefit of compensated absences to its employees (as per policy and approval mechanism)
which are in the nature of long-term employee benefit plan. Liability in respect of compensated absences becoming due
and expected to be availed more than one year after the balance sheet date is estimated on the basis of an actuarial
valuation performed by an independent actuary using the projected unit credit method as on the reporting date. Service
cost and net interest expense on the Company’s other long-term employee benefits plan is included in employee benefits
expense. Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are also
tecorded in the statement of profit and loss in the year in which such gains or losses arise.

Earnings per share

Basic eatnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders
(after deducting attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. The
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the petiod is adjusted for events including a bonus issue.
For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all
dilutive potential equity shares.

Rounding of amounts

All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest millions as per the
requirement of Division II of Schedule III, unless otherwise stated.

5.15 Critical estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of accounting estimates which, by definition, will seldom equal
the actual results. Management also needs to exercise judgement in applying the Company’s accounting policy. This note
provides an overview of the areas that involved a higher degree of judgement or complexity, and of items which are more
likely to be materially adjusted due to estimates and assumptions turning out to be different than those originally assessed.
Detailed information about each of these estimates and judgements is included in relevant notes together with
information about the basis of calculation for each affected line item in the financial statements.

a) Useful lives of depreciable/amortisable assets — Management reviews its estimate of the useful lives of
depreciable/amortisable assets at each reporting date, based on the expected utility of the assets. Uncertainties in
these estimates relate to technical and economic obsolescence that may change the utilisation of assets.

b) Leases — The Company evaluates if an arrangement qualifies to be a lease as per the requirements of Ind AS 116.
Identification of a lease requires significant judgment. The Company uses significant judgement in assessing the lease
term (including anticipated renewals) and the applicable discount rate. The Company determines the lease term as
the non-cancellable period of a lease, together with both periods covered by an option to extend the lease if the
Company is reasonably certain to exercise that option; and periods covered by an option to terminate the lease if the
Company is reasonably certain not to exetcise that option. In assessing whether the Company is reasonably certain
to exercise an option to extend a lease, or not to exercise an option to terminate a lease, it considers all relevant facts
and circumstances that create an economic incentive for the Company to exetcise the option to extend the lease, or
not to exetcise the option to terminate the lease. The Company revises the lease term if there is a change in the non-
cancellable period of a lease.

¢) Defined benefit obligation (DBO) — Management’s estimate of the DBO is based on a number of upderlying
assumptions such as standard rates of inflation, mortality, discount rate and anticipation of future salary increases.
Vatiation in these assumptions may significantly impact the DBO amount and the annual defined benefit expenses.

d) Impairment of financial assets — At each balance sheet date, based on historical default rates obsetved over
expected life, existing market conditions as well as forward looking estimates, the management assesses the expected
credit losses on outstanding receivables. Further, management also considers the factors that may influence the credit
risk of its customer base, including the default risk associated with industry and country in which the customer

operates.
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€)

Evaluation of indicators for impairment of non-financial assets — The evaluation of applicability of indicators

of impairment of assets requires assessment of several external and internal factors which could result in detetioration
of recoverable amount of the assets.

Recognition of deferred tax assets — The extent to which defetred tax assets can be recognized is based on an

assessment of the probability of the Company’s future taxable income against which the deferred tax assets can be
utilized.

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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GHL Pharma & Diagnostic Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(All amounts are in ¥ millions, unless otherwise stated)

7A Intangible assets

Particulars Software

Balance as at 01 April 2023 1.24
Additions 4.30
Balance as at 31 March 2024 5.54
Additions 454
Balance as at 31 March 2025 10.08

Accumulated amortisation

Balance as at 01 April 2023 0.03
Charge for the year 0.53
Balance as at 31 March 2024 0.56
Charge for the year 1.57
Balance as at 31 March 2025 213
Net block as at 31 March 2024 4.98
Net block as at 31 March 2025 7.95

7B Intangible assets under development*#

Particulars Software

Balance as at 01 April 2023 -

Additions -

Disposals ' =

Balance as at 31 March 2024 _ -

Additions 1.22

Disposals =

Balance as at 31 March 2025 1.22

* Refer note 42B for ageing details of intangible assets under development.

# Refer note 43 for disclosure of contractual commitments for the acquisition of intangible assets under development.

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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GHL Pharma & Diagnostic Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

(A amounts are in T millions, unless otherwise stated)

Note - 8

Other financial assets - non-current
(Unsecured considered good)
Sccurity deposits

Bank deposits with maturity of more than 12 months (refer note below)

Note:

Bank deposits (excluding mterest accrued) of % 0.20 millions (31 March 2024: ¥ Nil) is kept under lien with bank as margin money against the bank guarantees.

Other financial assets - current
(Unsecured considered good)
Sccurnity deposits

Other recevables#
# Refer note 37 for related party details.

Note - 9
Deferred tax assets (net)
Deferred tax assets (net)

Deferred tax assets arising on account of :

Lmployee benefits

Expenses allowed under section 35D of Income-tax Act 1961
Lease labilities

Others

Deferred tax liabilities arising on account of :
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

Right of usc assets

Notes:

The Company has unabsorbed business loss

period of cight years, which is yet to expire. The Company has not recognised deferred ¢

income. \dditionally, the recognised deferred tax assets is to the extent of deferred tax Tabih

Details of expiry related to brought forward losses/unabsorbed depreciation:
As at 31 March 2025

As at
31 March 2025

As at
31 March 2024

4.57 1.66
0.20 -
4.77 1.66
0.98 0.96
0.13 -
111 0.96
0.58 0.62
0.22 0.22
3499 15.38
0.26 -
36.05 16.22
(3.91) (1.80)
(32.14) (14.42)
(36.05) (16.22)

s. by restricting the recognition of additional deferred tax assets on employee benefits.

(including unabsorbed depreciation) of T 263.50 millions (31 March 2024: X 133.11 millions). The unabsorbed business losses are available for utilisation for a maximum

sset on above unabsorbed business losses (including unabsorbed depreciation) in absence of probabihty of future taxable

Particulars 0-1years 1-5 years 5-8 years No expiry date Total
Unabsorbed business losses - 229.05 - 229.05
Unabsorbed depreciation - . 3445 3445
As at 31 March 2024
Particulars 0-1years 1-5 years 5-8 years No expiry date Total
Unabsorbed business losses - 120.54 = 120.54
Unabsorbed depreciation - - 12.57 12.57
Caption wise movement in deferred tax as follows:
For the year ended 31 March 2025
Particulars As at Recognised in statement of Recognised in other As at
01 April 2024 profit and loss comprehensive income 31 March 2025
Assets
imployee benefits 0.62 0.04) - 0.58
Unabsorbed business lo: and depreciation - = - -
lixpenses allowed under section 35D of Income-tax Act 1961 0.22 - = 0.22
I.casc labilities 15.38 19.61 . 34.99
Others 0.26 = 0.26
Liabilities
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (1.80) (2.11) = (3.91)
Right of usc asscts (14.42) (17.72) = (32.14)
Total = - - -
For the year ended 31 March 2024
Particulars As at Recognised in statement of Recognised in other As at
01 April 2023 profit and loss comprehensive income 31 March 2024
Assets
Iimployee benefits 0.23 0.39 - 0.62
Unabsorbed business losses and depreciation 0.26 (0.26) = -
Fixpenses allowed under section 35D of Income-tax Act 1961 - 0.22 - 0.22
Lease habilities 14.66 0.72 = 15.38
Liabilities
Property. plant and equipment and ntangible assets (0.15) (1.63) = (1.80)
Right of usc assets (14.70) 0.28 - (14.42)

Total




GHL Pharma & Diagnostic Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

(Allamounts are in ¥ millions, unless otherwise stated)

As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Note - 10
Income-tax assets (net)
Dot s
Prepaid tax 285 0.30)
2.85 0.30 -
Note - 11
Other non-current assets
Capital advances
0.89 1.69
0.89 1.69
Other current assets
D100, 1 CXTICT
Prepaid expe s ) 1.31 0.61
\dvance to service providers 5 7.25
v 152 7.25
Balances with government authorities 5
7.95 +.80
10.78 12.66
Note - 12
Inventories*
Pharmacy, medical and laboratory consumables 5.57 3.08
Pharmacy and medical consumables related to sale of pharmacy products 98.79 45.02
General stores 1.80 2.83
106.16 50.93
“valued.at cost or net realisable value, whichever is lower.
Note - 13
Trade receivables™*
Considered good - unsecured 17.39 7.55
17.39 7.55
Less: \llowance for expected credit loss
Considered good - unsecured (0.31) -
17.08 7.55
“ Refer note 42C for ageing details.
* Refer note 37 for related party details.
Note - 14
Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks in current accounts* 94.87 +41.27
Cash on hand 2.16 1.60)
Bank deposits with original maturity of less than three months - 20.07
97.03 62.94
“Includes balances with e-wallet and eredit card companies amounting to % 0.69 millions (31 March 2024: % (.49 millions)
Note - 15
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents ;
Bank deposits with maturity of more than three months and upto nwelve months 0.76 23.96 -
0.76 23.96
Note - 16 As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
A Equity share capital
i Authorised Number Amount Number Amount
Fiquity share capital of face value of X 10 cach 15,000,000 150.00 15000000~ 150.00
150.00 150.00
ii Issued, subscribed and paid up
liquity share capital of face value of X 10 cach 10,010,000 100.10 o000 100.10
100.10 100.10
iii Reconciliation of number of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year
As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
Equity shares Number Amount Number Amount
Balance at the beginning of the year 10,010,000 100.10 10,010,000 100.10
\dd: Issued durig the vear R R - R
Balance at the end of year 10,010,000 100.10 10,010,000 100.10
iv  Share of the Company held by the Holding Company
As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
Name of the equity shareholder Number Yo Number Yo
Global Health Limited# 10,010,000 100.00%% 10,010,000 100.00° o

*Out of this, | shares (each) are held by Dr. Naresh Trehan and Mr. Pankaj Sahani as a nomince of the Holding Company.

v Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares
liquity shares have a face value of 10 per share. Each holder of equity share is entitled to one vote per share. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the sharcholders m the

ensuing \nnual General Meeting, except in case of interim dividend. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holder of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company. after distribution of

all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the sharcholders.

vi Aggregate number and class of shares allotted as fully paid up pursuant to contract(s) without payment being received in cash, by way of bonus shares and shares bought back since the date of
incorporation
The Company did not issuc any shares pursuant to conteact(s) without payment being received mn cash.

ue bonus shares

The Company did not iss

‘The Company has not undertaken any buy back of shares.

Details of promoter shareholding

P
s,

For details, refer note 4215
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(Aamounts are in X mullions, unless otherwise stated)

As at As at
B Other equity 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Retained earnings
Opening balance (152.52) (23.00)
Add: Loss for the year (133.46) (129.99)
\dd: Other comprehensive income 0.51 047
Closing balance (285.47) (152.52)
Nature and purpose of reserves:
Retained earnings
Retamed earnings comprises of current period and prior periods undistributed carnings or losses after tax.
Note - 17
Borrowings - non-current®
Unsecured
From related party
Term loan from Holding Company 283.34 100.00
Less: Current maturities of long-term loan from Holding Company (66.67) (16.67)-
216.67 83.33
Borrowings - current®
Unsecured
Current maturitics of long-term loan from Holding Company 66.67 16.67
66.67 16.67
¥ Refer note 37 for details of related party.
Terms of borrowings:
Loan taken from Global Health Limited (Holding Company) of % 300.00 millions (31 March 2024:  100.00 millions), for the purpose of business related acuvities, shall be repaid n 12 quarterly installments of X 16.67

mullions cach over the period of 45 months (including 1 year moratorium from the date of loan) starting from December 2024. The rate of interest is State Bank of India (SBI) 3 month NMCLR + 0.20%% per annum.

The changes in the Company's liabilities arising from financing activities are summarised as follows:

Particulars Borrowings* Finance cost Total
01 April 2024 100.00 - 100.00
Cash flows:
- Proceeds from long-term loan from IHolding Company 200.00 - 200.00
Interest expense - 16.86 16.86
- Pavments made (16.66) {16.86) (3,
31 March 2025 283.34 - 283.34
*This includes current maturitics of long-term loan from Holding Company as well.
Particulars Borrowings* Finance cost Total
01 April 2023 - o =
Cash flows:
- Proceeds from long-term loan from Holding Company 100.00 - 100.00
- Intes expense - 277 2.77
Payments made - (2.77) (2.77)
31 March 2024 100.00 = 100.00
* This includes current maturities of long-term loan from Holding Company as well.
As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Note - 18
Lease liabilities - non-current
Lease labihities (refer note 38) 123.43
123.43
Lease liabilities - current
1.case habilities (refer note 38) 13.61 12.45
15.61 12.45
‘The changes in the Company’s lease liabilities arising from financing activities can be classified as follows:
Particulars Amount
Lease liabilities as at 01 April 2023 (current and non-current) 58.24
Additions l“-‘_’('
Interest on lease liabilities p (;::’
Payment of lease liabilities (15.7%)
Tcase liabilitics as at 31 March 2024 (current and non-current) 61.10
Additions 87.69
Interest on lease habilities (i:;l(-)l
Payment of lease labilities (22.79)
Le-ase liabilities as at 31 March 2025 (current and non-current) 139.04
As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Note - 19
Provisions - non-current
Provision for c:mployee benefits: - "
Gratuity (refer note 40) 2T ]
Compensated absences 3.58 1L.o4
6.19 2.99
Provisions - current
Provision for employee benefits:
Gratuity (refer note 40) “»:'4 .
Compensated absences 0:;;4 e
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(Allamounts are in X millions, unless otherwise stated)

As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Note - 20
Trade payables”
A Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises® 53.07 41.63
53.07 41.63
*Disclosure under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (“MSMED Act, 2006”) are as follows:
Particul
articulars As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
1) |the principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplicr as at the end of each accounting vear: 53.07 +41.03
i) |the amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16, along with the amounts of the payment made to the supplicr beyond the appointed day during each - -
accounting ycar
i) |the amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without - -
adding the interest specified under the NMSNED Act:
) |the amount of interest accrued and remaiing unpaid at the end of each accounting year; and 5 - 0.06
v) [the amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding vears, until such date when the mterest dues as above are actually paid to the small - -
enterprse, for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section 23.
As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
B Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises
Duc to related partics# 96.70 6214
Duc to others +4.52 29.21
141.22 91.35
* Refer note 42D for agemng details.
# Reter note 37 for related party details.
Note - 21
A Other financial liabilities - non-current
Security deposits 1.08 210
4.08 2.10
B Other financial liabilities - current
Capital creditors”™ 6.22
Security deposits 0.41 -
Limployee related payables +49 +.58
Other habilitie 1.56 1..39
12.68 8.50
" Includes capital creditors payable to micro and small enterprises amounting to X 1.62 millions (31 March 2024:  Nil).
*The amount pertains to deposits made by the Company's diagnostic business partners in prepaid wallets of the Company.
Note - 22
A Other non-current liabilities
Deferred mcome#” 0.34
0.34
B Other current liabilities
Payable to statutory authorities 8.31 +11
\dvance from customers 0.56 -
Deferred mecome#” 0.45 0.5+
9.32 4.65
# Deferred income classified into .
Q . 0:52 ..
Non-current portion 7
¢ . 045 0.54
.urrent portion
I 0.97 0.88
“Deferred income
i 0.88 0.12
Opening balance
i 1 0.34 0.87
Add: Recerved during the year a1}
Less: Released to statement of profit and loss (0.
0.97 0.88

Closing balance

(This space has been intentionally left blank)




GHL Pharma & Diagnostic Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(All amounts are in ¥ millions, unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Note - 23
Revenue from operations*#
Income from laboratory services
Income from laboratory services 329.64 155.27
Income from sale of pharmacy products
Sale of pharmacy products 734.74 60.46
1,064.38 215.73
*Refer note 41 for revenue related disclosures
# Refer note 37 for related party details.
Note - 24
Other income
Interest income on bank deposits 2.85 0.57
Interest income on other financial assets measured at amortised cost 0.75 0.35
Rental income* 119 0.35
Miscellaneous income 0.38 0.33
5.17 1.60
*includes rental income from related parties, refer note 37 for details.
Note - 25
Cost of materials consumed
Pharmacy, medical and laboratory consumables
Opening stock 3.08 0.47
Add: Purchases 36.47 16.33
Less: Closing stock (5.57) (3.08)
Materials consumed 33.98 13.72
General stores
Opening stock 2.83 0.23
Add: Purchases 3.34 3.68
Less: Closing stock (1.80) (2.83)
Materials consumed 4.37 1.08
38.35 14.80
Note - 25
Purchases of stock-in-trade 520.72 85.27
Note - 25
Changes in inventories of stock-in-trade
Opening stock 45.02 -
Less: Closing stock 98.79 45.02
Changes in inventories of stock-in-trade (53.77) (45.02)
Note - 26
Employee benefits expense
Salaries and wages 173.52 94.10
Contribution to provident fund and other funds 9.41 4.59
Staff welfare expenses 0.83 0.62
183.76 99.31
Note - 27
Finance costs
Interest on borrowings* 16.86 2.77
Interest on lease liabilities 13.04 6.54
Interest on security deposits 0.24 013
Other borrowing costs 0.13 0.07
30.27 9.51
*includes interest on borrowings from related parties, refer note 37 for details.
Note - 28
Depreciation and amortisation expense
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 13.86 475
Depreciation on right of use assets 12,93 1?‘42
Amortisation of intangible assets 1.57 053
28.36 16.70
Note - 29
Retainers and consultants fee
Retainers and consultants fee 11.01 3.23
' 11.01 3.23




GHL Pharma & Diagnostic Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Al amounts are in ¥ millions, unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Note - 30
Outsourced services
Franchise fees 91.87 23.41
Outsourced laboratory services* 106.37 79.70
198.24 103.11
*includes outsourced laboratory services from related parties, refer note 37 for details.
Note - 31
Other expenses
Power and fuel 279 1.85
Lease rent:
Premises* 136.93 10.48
Repairs and maintenance:
Equipment 294 0.63
Building 0.10 3.63
Others 2.70 -
Rates and taxes 4.04 1.81
Recruitment expenses 0.32 0.14
Insurance 0.21 0.01
Travelling and conveyance 9.54 6.48
Communication expenses 0.59 0.18
Postage and courier expenses 24.28 16.67
Home collection expenses 20.75 1.60
Payment to auditor as:
Auditor (excluding taxes) 1.10 1.18
For reimbursement of expenses (excluding taxes) 0.11 0.02
Security expenses 0.01 =
Facility management expenses 2.64 0.67
Advertisement and business promotion 9.86 6.02
Expected credit loss on trade receivables 0.31 -
Legal and professional 4.83 0.73
Printing and stationery 16.42 6.59
Bank charges 5.38 1.32
Miscellaneous expenses 0.22 0.40
246.07 60.41

* Includes rental expense to related parties, refer note 37.

Note - 32

Tax expenses

Current tax
Deferred tax

Income-tax expense recognised in the statement of profit and loss

The major components of the reconciliation of expected tax expense based on the domestic effective tax rate of the Company at 25.168% and the reported tax expense in the

statement of profit and loss are as follows:

Accounting loss before income-tax (133.46) (129.99)

At India’s statutory income tax rate of 25.168% (31 March 2024: 25.168%) (33.59) (32.72)

Tax impact of unabsorbed business losses (including unabsorbed depreciation) 32.82 32.72
0.77 -

Tax impact of deferred tax not created on employee benefits

Income-tax expense

Note - 33
Earnings per share (EPS)

Earnings per share (EPS') is determined based on the net profit or loss attributable to the sharcholders. Basic earnings per share is computed using the weighted average number
of shares outstanding during the period. Diluted earnings per share is computed using the weighted average number of common and dilutive common equivalent shares

outstanding during the period, except where the result would be anti-dilutive.

Loss attributable to equity shareholders for basic and diluted EPS (133.46) (129.99)
Weighted average number of equity shares for basic EPS 10,010,000 10,010,000
Weighted average number of equity shares adjusted for the effect of dilution 3 ; 10,010,000 10,010,000

Earnings per equity share
Basic and diluted () . (13.33) (12.99)
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@

(ii)

(ii)

(A

Note - 34

Fair value disclosures

Fair value hierarchy

The following explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments that are recognised and measured at fair value. To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs
used in determining fair value, the Company has classified its financial instruments into the three levels prescribed under the accounting standard. - .

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for financial instruments.

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Level | that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly.

Level 3: unobscrvable inputs for the as

et or liability.

Valuation techniques used to determine fair value

I'he fair value of the financial asscts and liabilities are included at the amount that would be received to sell an asset and paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants. The following methods -
were used to estimate the fair values:- )

- Cash and cash equivalents, bank balances other than cash and cash cquivalents, trade recervables, other current financial assets, trade payables and other current financial liabilitics: Approximate their carrying amounts largely
duc to the short-teem maturitics of these instruments. o o

- Borrowings taken by the Company are as per the Company's credit and liquidity risk assessment and there is no comparable instrument having the similar terms and conditions with related security being pledged and hence

the carrying value of the borrowings represents the best estimate of fair value.

Fair value of assets and liabilities which are measured at amortised cost for which fair value are disclosed

Particulars As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024

Amortised cost Fair value Amortised cost Fair value
Financial assets
“T'rade receivables 17.08 17.08 7.55 7.55
Cash and cash equivalents 97.03 97.03 62.94 62.94
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents - 0.76 0.76 96
Other financial assets 5.88 5.88 2.62
Total financial assets 120.75 120.75 97.07
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 28334 283.34 100.00 100.00
I'rade payables 194.29 194.29 132.98 132.98
Orther financial liabilities 16.76 16.76 10.60 10.60
Total financial liabilities 494.39 494.39 243.58 243.58
Note - 35
Financial risk management
Financial instruments by category
Particulars Amortised cost

As at As at

31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Financial assets

Trade receivables 17.08 7.55
Cash and cash equivalents 97.03 62.94
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 0.76 23.96
Other financial assets 5.88 62
Total financial assets 5 120.75 97.07
Financial liabilities

Borrowing ’ 283.34 100.00
‘I'tade payables 194.29 132.98
Other financial liabilities . 16.76 10.60
Total financial liabilities 494.39 243.58

“There are no financial assets and liabilities which are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income or fair value through profit and lo:

Risk management

risk management framework. This note

and credit r1s board of dircctors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company's

The Company’s activities are exposed to liquidity ris he Company

the

explains the sources of risk which the entity is exposed to and how the entity manages < and the related impact in the financial statements.

Risk Exposure arising from Measurement Management
i ts, credit limits and letters of credit

“I'tade receivables, cash and cash equivalents,|Credit ratings Diversification of bank depos
bank balances other than cash and cash

Credit

cquivalents and other financial asset

Availability of committed credit lines and borrowing facilities

Liquidity risk Borrowings, trade payables and  other|Cash flow forecas
financial liabilitics

Diversification of borrowings

Market risk — interest rate Long-term borrowings at variable rates Sensitivity analys

Credit risk

Credit ik manasenient

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial asset fails to meet its contractual obligations. The Company’s exposure to credit s influenced mainly by the individual

characteristics of cach financial asset. The carrying amounts of financial assets represent the maximum credit risk exposure.

\ default on a financial assct is when the counterparty fails to make contractual payments as per agreed terms. This definition of default is determined by considering the business environment in which entity operates and other

macro-cconomic factors.

ssets are written off when

s duc to non-performance of counterparties. The Company monitors its exposurc to credit risk on an ongoing basi:

The Company has a credit risk management policy in place to limit credit loss
. Where loans and receivables are written off. the Company continues to engage in enforcement acti

ty to attempt to recover the dues.

sonable expectation of recove

there is no re:

Trade receirables

¢ of the receivables through internal systems that are configured to define credit limits of customers, thereby, limiting the credit risk to pre-calculated amounts. The Company |

“Ihe Company closcly monitors the credit-worthine:

has used simplified approach (lifetime expected credit loss model) for the purpose of computation of expected credit loss for trade receivables. | s are measured on collective basis. Trade receivables .

xpected credit o

outstanding for more than six months are considered irrecoverable.

Cash and cash cquivalents and other bank balances
Credit risk related to cash and cash equivalents and bank deposits is managed by only investing
isk is considered low because the Company deals with highly rated banks and financial institution.

in deposits with highly rated banks and financial institutions and diversifying bank deposits and accounts in different banks. Credit

1

Other financial assets

Other financial assets measured at amortized cost includes security deposits is managed by monitoring the recoverability of such amounts continuously, while at the same time internal

Credit risk related to these financial as

ion of the underlying assct.

control system arc in place to ensure the amounts are within defined limits. Credit risk is considered low because the Company
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(i) Credit risk exposure
Provision for expected credit losses

The Company provides for 12 month or lifetime expected credit losses for following financial asscts -

As at 31 March 2025

Particulars

Estimated gross
carrying amount at default

Expected credit losses

Carrying amount net of
impairment provision

Trade receivables

1739 (0.31) 17.08
Cash and cash equivalents 97.03 - 97.03
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 0.76 - 0.76
Other financial assets 5.88 - 5.88

As at 31 March 2024

Particulars

Estimated gross
carrying amount at default

Expected credit losses

Carrying amount net of
impairment provision

“T'rade receivables UsH -
Cash and cash cquivalents 62.94 -
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 23.96 -
Orther financial assets 2.62

Reconciliation of expected credit loss for trade receivables

Reconciliation of loss allowance

Trade receivables

Loss allowance as on 01 April 2023
\llowance for expected credit loss

Bad debts written off

Loss allowance on 31 March 2024

\lowance for expected credit loss 0.31
Bad debts written off -
Loss allowance on 31 March 2025 0.31

(B) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the nsk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligation

managing liquidity is to ensure as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilitics when they are due.

T'he Company maintains flexibility in funding by maintaining availability under committed credit lines. Nanagement monitors the Company

Maturities of financial liabilities

ociated with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The Company's approach to

liquidity position and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash flows.

The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilitics at the reporting date. The amounts are gross and undiscounted and include contractual interest payments and exclude the impact of netting

agreements.
As at 31 March 2025 Less than 1 year 1-3 years More than 3 years Total
Non-derivatives
I.casc liabilities 28.04 59.13 108.07 195.24
Borrowings 060,67 2106.67 - 283.34
‘T'rade payables 194.29° = - 194.29
° '
Other financial liabilities 12.68 +.08 - 16.76
Total 301.68 279.88 108.07 689.63
As at 31 March 2024 Less than 1 year 1-3 years More than 3 years Total
Non-derivatives
Lease liabilities 13.74 26.50 50.63 90.87
Borrowings 16.67 83.33 - 100.00
‘Trade payables 132.98 - - 132.98
Other financial liabilitics 8.50 2.10 - 10.60
Total 171.89 111.93 50.63 334.45
The Company also has access to the following undrawn borrowing from the Holding Companny.
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Undrawn borrowing facilities 250.00 300.00
(C) Market risk
(i) Interest rate risk
“Ihe exposure of the Company's borrowing to interest rate changes at the end of reporting year are as follows:
“The Company’s variable rate borrowing is subject to interest rate risk. Below is the overall exposure of the borrowing: . .
5 '
Interest rate risk exposure:
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Variable rate borrowings 283.34 100.00
Sensitivity
Profit or loss is sensitive to higher/lower interest expense from borrowings as a result of changes in interest rates.
Particulars As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
Interest rate Interest rate Interest rate Interest rate
increase by 50 decrease by 50 | increase by 50 basis| decrease by 50
basis points basis points points basis points
Variable rate borrowings 1.42] (1.42) 0.50 (0.50)
Note - 36
Capital management
The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to maintain positive cash flow position. The Company's strategy is to maintain a reasonable current ratio. The current ratio is as follows:
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Current assets 23092 159.00
Current labilities P ’ 20911 17534
g '
Current ratio 0.78 0.91
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Note - 37
Related party transactions

Inaccordance with the requirements of Ind AS 24, Related party disclosures, the names of the related party where control exists along with the age;

management have been given below:

(i)  Entity which exercise control over the Company

31 March 2025

31 March 2024 |

|(]lobn] Health Limited

l(}]obal Iealth Limuted ]

(ii) Key management personnel (KMP)

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

(1) Dr. Naresh Trehan

(11) \lr. Pankaj Prakash Sahni

(i) \Ir. Yogesh Kumar Gupta (from 20 \March 2024)
(iv) Mr. Rajdeep Panwar#

(v) Mr. Anup Kumar Jha$ (from 09 August 2023)

(1) Dr. Naresh Trehan

(i1) NMr. Pankaj Prakash Sahni

(111) Mr. Sanjeev Kumar (6l 15 December 2023)

(iv) Mr. Rajdeep Panwar#

(v) Mr. Anup Kumar Jha$ (from 09 August 2023)
(vi) Mr. Yogesh Kumar Gupta (from 20 NMarch 2024)

(iif) Fellow subsidiaries, with whom transcation have been undertaken or whose balances are outstanding

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

Global Health Patliputra Private limited

Global ITealth Patliputra Private limited

Medanta Holdings Private Limited®

* The entity 15 now merged with Global Iealth Limited (common control business combination) and accordingly, the transaction with the entity are presented in the name of Global I lealth Limited.

# Designated as Manager as per the Act.
$ Designated as Chief Financial Officer.

(a) Transactions with related parties carried out in the ordinary course of business:

regate transactions and year end balances with them as identified and certified by the

S. Particulars Related parties Total
No. Year ended Entity which exercise Key mangement personnel Fellow subsidiaries
control over the Company
I |Rental income
31 March 2025 1.19 - - 1.19
Global Health Limited [ 3 arch 2025 [ _| | [ =
| 31 March 2024 [ 0.35] [ - 0.35
2 |Income from laboratory services |
31 March 2025 [ 16.13 ] 5 -] 16.13
; i 0 B »d I
Global Health Limited I 31 Narch 2024 I ‘)-_/“l R I - I 9.70
3 |Sale of pharmacy products I
. . . ; | 31 March 2025 | = = = =
Global Health Patliputra Private Limited I S INEE DY l - I : l 3-30| T30
+ [Rental expense
. . 31 March 2025 108.96 - - 108.96
Global Health Limited e T - : %
° ) o L 31 March 2025 = - 24.35 24.35
Global Health Patliputra Private Limited TG 2030 - - 026 0.26
5 |Outsourced laboratory services
i 31 March 2025 82.28 - - 82.28
Global Health Limited 31 March 2054 i - . 6137
5 S Pri Limited 31 March 2025 - - 19.58 19.58
Global Health Patliputra Private Limited 31 March 2053 - - 1156 1156
6~ {Borrowings taken
. . [ 31 March 2025 [ 200.00] Al 3 200.00
Global [Tealth Limited I 31 Narch 2024 | M(L”“l . I - ] 100.00
7 |Borrowings repaid
. et [ 31 \March 2023 [ 16.07] =i = 16.67
Global Tealth Limitec I 3T Narch 2053 l B I B l A
8 |Interest on borrowings k
- _ T 31 March 2025 [ 16.86] -] - 16.86
Global Health Limited J 31 Narch 2024 I 2.7_/1 N I N l 277
9 |Purchase of Assets (including taxes)
: 31 March 2025 103 : = 1.03
Global Health Limited 31 Narch 2004 ~ - -
31 March 2025 . 045 045
Global Health Patliputra Private Limited 31 Nacch 2004 B N N N
10 |Salaries and other benefits _
31 March 2025 - 13.59 s 13.59
Short-term employee benefits 31 Nacch 2024 R 1234 B 12.34
31 March 2025 - 0.11 0.1
Post-employment benefits 31 Narch 2004 B 0.05 R 0.05
31 \March 2025 - 0.07 0.07
Other long-term benefits 3T Narch 2024 0 010 R 0.12
11 {Amount collected on bahlf of the Company e
. [ 31 March 2025 [ : 91.34] =5 3 )
Global ITealth Limited [ 31 Narch 2004 l i l . ' _ I -

(Vhis space ba ntentionally lef blank)
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Note - 37
Related party transactions (Cont'd)

(b) Closing balance with related parties in the ordinary course of business:

S. Particulars Related parties Total
No. Year ended Entity which exercise Key mangement personnel Fellow subsidiaries
control over the Company
I |Equity share capital
3 5 31 March 2023 = -
Global IHealth Limited I 1 March 2025 I 100.10 l l | 100.10
| 31 March 2024 | 100.10 | - - 100.10
2 |Trade payables
3 5 31\ 2025 5 5 =
Global Health Limited 1 March 2025 79.50 79.50
31 March 2024 50.95 - R 50.95
o 5 " o 31 March 2025 - 2 2
Global Health Patliputra Private Limited arc 2 17.20 17.20
31 March 2024 - - 11.19 11.19
3 |Trade receivables
s . 1 Ma 2025 9.25 = -
Global Health Limited | 31 March 2025 [ 9.25] [ [ 9.25
| 31 March 2024 [ 5.03] - | -] 5.03
4 |Other receivables
’ . 31 March 2025 0. = =
Global Health Limited | farch 2025 I 13[ I | 0.13
[ 31 March 2024 [ - 1.73] - -] 173
5 |Borrowings
N . March 2 28 - R
Global Health Limited | 31 March I —5334[ I | 283.34
31 March 2024 I ]()(m()[ _ | R I 100.00
Note 1: The Company has taken support letter ('letter’) from Global Health Limited (Holding Company) for operational and financial support for a period of 12 months from the date of said letter.
Note 2: Al transactions with related parties are made on the terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm's length transactions and within the ordinary course of business. \ll outstanding balances are unsecured and
repavables/receivables will be sertled in cash.
Note - 38
Lease related disclosures as lessee
The Company has leases for premises. With the exception of short-term leases and leases of low-value underlying assets, cach lease is reflected on the balance sheet as a right-of-use asset and a lease lability. Variable leasce
pany P T ying g )
payments which do not depend on an index or a rate are excluded from the initial measurement of the lease liability and right of use assets. The Company has presented its right-of-use assets in the balance sheet separately from
other asscts,
I“ach lease generally imposes a restriction that, unless there is a contractual right for the Company to sublease the asset to another party, the right-of-use asset can only be used by the Company. Some leases contain an option to
E: yamp g pany party g ) 3 pany !
extend the lease for a further teem. The Company is prohibited from selling or pledging the underlying leased assets as security. For leases over premises, the Company must keep those properties in a good state of repair and
return the propertics in their original condition at the end of the lease. Further, the Company is required to pay maintenance fees in accordance with the lease contracts.
A Lease payments not included in measurement of lease liability
The expenses relating to payments not included in the measurement of the lease liability arc as follows : .
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Short-term leases 136.93 2.03
B \sat 31 March 2025, the Company was committed to short-term leases and the total commitment at that date was ¥ 2.13 millions (31 March 2024 : % 0.80 millions).
C  Total cash outflow for leases for the year ended 31 March 2025 is % 22.79 millions (31 March 2024: % 13.74 millions).
D Total expense recognised during the year
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Interest on leasc liabilities 13.04 6.54
Depreciation on right of usc assets’ 12.93 1142
* capitalised T 6.85 millions (31 March 2024:  Nil) to capital work-in-progress out of depreciation o right of use asse.
E Bifurcation of lease liabilities in current and non-current
Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
S P ey = =T
a) Current liability (amount due within onc vear) 15.61 1245
b) Non-current liability (amount due over one year) 123.43 48.65
F  Maturity of lease liabilities
‘T'he lease liabilities ate secured by the related underlying assets. Future minimum lease payments were as follows: =
|3l March 2025 | Less than 1 year ! 1-2 years | 2-3 years | More than 3 years | Total
3 20.8 05.24
l.case payments | 28.04 I 29.29 l _).MI 108.07 I 195
|31 March 2024 | Less than 1 year l 1-2 years l 2-3 years ! More than 3 years | Total 4]
— == = 50.63 90.87
II.L’.’I.\'L‘ payments l 13.74 l 12,77 l 1373 l 50.63 I J
G Information about extension and termination options as at 31 March 2025
Right of use assets 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
= D B
Building premises Building premises
Number of leases 28 15
. 2 3¢ 7 2 7.95
Range of remaining term (in years) 2.59 to 8.67 0.26 to 7.95
o . 587 vears 5:04 vears
Average remaining lease teem (in years) 5.82 years 5.04 _\m_x.
. . ; BT
Number of leases with extension option 28 l.?
" . . P
Number of leases with termination option 28 15
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Note - 39

The chief operating decision maker (CODM) examines the Company's performance from a service perspective and has identified the 'diagnostic' business and "pharmacy’ busin
operating in India which constitutes a single geographical segment. The CODM reviews internal management reports to as
which would amount to ten percent or more of the Company's revenues.

as a seperate busi
s the performance of the cach segment. There are no transactions with

cgment. The Company is

a single external customer

For year ended 31 March 2025

Particulars

Diagnostic business Pharmacy business Unallocable Total
Segment revenue )
‘T'otal income 329.88 736.34 3.33 1,069.55
Total segment revenue 329.88 736.34 3.33 1,069.55
Segment results before finance cost and tax (118.85) 58.73 (43.07) (103.19)
|ess: Finance cost 6.83 645 16.99 30.27
Loss before tax (125.68) 52.28 (60.06) (133.46
|ess: Tax expense = - - -
Loss for the year (125.68) 52.28 (60.06) (133.46)
Other information
Segment assets 130.33 221.14 113.16 464.63
Segment habilities 137.37 215.27 297.36 650.00
Capital expenditure 63.78 89.66 7.29 . 160.73
Depreciation and amoritisation expense 19.16 5.3+ 3.86 28.36
For year ended 31 March 2024
Particulars Diagnostic business Pharmacy business Unallocable Total
Segment revenue
lixternal turnover 155.27 060.46 1.00 217.33
Total segment revenue 155.27 60.46 1.60 217.33
Segment results before finance cost and tax (99.28) (6.11) (15.09) (120.48)
Less: Finance cost - - 9.51 9.51
Loss before tax (99.28) (6.11) (24.60) (129.99;
J.ess: Tax expense = S = -
Loss for the year (99.28) (6.11) (24.60) (129.99)
Other information
Scgment asscts 14.20 58.91 187.22 260.33
Scgment liabilities 75.07 7349 164.19 312.75
Capital expenditure - 4741 47141
Depreciation and amoritisation expense 16.70 16.70

jv space has heen tntentionadly lft blank)
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Note - 40
Employee benefits obligations
A Defined contribution plan

Particulars As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024

Iimployer’s contribution to provident fund charged to statement of profit and loss” 8.52 430
Contribution to labour welfare fund charged to statement of profit and loss 0.10 0.01
Contribution to employee state msurance scheme charped to statement of profit and loss 079 0.28
Total 9.41 4.59

“Contributions are made 1o recognised provident fund administercd by the Government of India for emplovees ar the rate of 120 of basic salary as per regularions. The obli

contracrual or consrructive obligation

B Gratuity

“The Company provides for gratuiry for cmplovees in Tndia as per the Payment of Graruin At 1972

imployees who are in conrinuous service for a period of 3 vears

i SN A - » :
employee's last drawn basic salacy per month computed proportionatcly for 135 days salary multiplicd for the number of vears of service.

(i) Amounts recognized in the balance sheet

tion of the Company s hmited o the amount contributed and ir has no further

are cligible for graruity. The amount of graruity payable on rerirement/termination is the

Particulars _ As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
Present value of the obligation at end of the vear 2,61 1.35:
Unfunded liability /provision in balance sheet (2.61) (1"3%7

Bifurcation of present value of obligation - current and non-current

Particulars As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
Current habiliry R ,
Non-current labilire 261 1.35
Total 2.61 1.35
(i) Amount gni in other pret income
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

\ctuarial gain

-Changes i demographic assumptions (11.99) (0.19y

Changes m financtal assumptions 0.600 0.05

Changes in expenience adusiment (.12 (1.33)
Actuarial gain recognized in other comprehensive income (0.51) (0.47)

(i) Expenses recognized in of profit and loss

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2025

For the year ended
31 March 2024

Current service cost 1.60 1522
Interest cost 0.11 0.03
Expense recognized during the year 177 1.25
(iv) M in the liability recognized in the balance sheet is as under:
Particulars As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
Present value of defined benefit obligation at the heginning of the year 1.35 0.57
Current seevice cost 1.66 1.22
Interest cost 011 0.03
Actuarial gam (0.51) 047)
Present value of defined benefit obligation at the end of the year 2.61 1.35
(v) For determination of the liability of the Company the following actuarial ptions were used:
Particulars As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
Discount rate 6.92%0) 7.13%)
9.00% 8.00%)

Salary escalation rate

Retirement age (vears
\vetage past service
werape age
\werage remaming working hife

Withdrawal eare

U'p to 30 vears

Frrom 31 to 44 vears

\bove 44 vears

60 vears
1.09
30.51 vears

2049 vears

25440

15.38%f

16.67" of

60) years
0.70
30.19 vears

20.81 years,

44000
10.00%

0.00%

Mortality rates inclusive of provision for disability -100% o of LALNL (2012~ 14)

(i) The weighted average duration for defined benefit plan as at 31 March 2025 is 4.92 years (31 March 2024: 12.32 year

(vii) Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation (undiscounted)
Year As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
Oto 1 year A =
1 to 2 year 0.03 -
2to 3 vear 0.18 0.01
3 to 4 vear 0.31 0.07
4105 year 0.33 011
51006 year 0.29 011
6 year onwards 307 1.98
4.21 2.28

Gross total

(viii) Sensitivity analysis for gratuity

Particulars

As at 31 March 2025

As at 31 March 2024

a) Impact of the change in discount rate

Present value of obligation at the end of the vear 2.61 1235
Impact due ro increase of 050" {0.11) (0.11)
Impact duc to decrease of 150 %0 U2 012

b) Impact of the change in salary increase

Present value of obligation at the end of the year 2.61 1.35
Impact due to mcrease of 050" o1l 012
Impact duc to decrease of 050" ©1n @iy

s are not matenial. Hence, impact of change 1s not caleulared above.
ions hefore retirement and life expectancy ace not applicable being 2 lump sum benefit on retirement.

Sensitivities due to mortality and withdr

- of pet

Sensihvities as fo rare of inflation, rate of increase of pensions in payment, rate of incre

Ihe above sensitivity analysis sumption while holding all other assumptions constant. In practice. this

are based on a change in an
sumptions the same method (present value of defined henefir ohligations ¢

benefit obligation to significant actuarial a

benefit liability recognised in the balance sheet.

C Other long-term employee benefits
An amount of T 2,39 millions (31 March 2024: % 1.54 millions) pertains to exper

¢ towards compensated absences. ~

leulated with the projecred unit credit method at the end of the reporting period) has been

anlikely to oceur, and changes in sum of the assumptions may be correlated. When calcularing the sensitivity of defined
applicd as when calculating the defined

(viii) Risk

Salary incr

¢ tatcassumption in future valudtions will also increase the hability.

fability. Increasc in salary incre;

Acrual s will increase the plan’s

Discount rate

Reduction in discount rate m subsequent valuations can increase the plan’s liability.

Mortality and disability

Actual deaths and disability cases proving lower or higher than assumed in the valuation can impact the liabilities,

Withdeawals

s proving highet ot lower than assumed withdrawals and change of withdrwal reat stbsgqudit valuations can impact plan's liabiliry.

A\ctual withdray
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Note - 41

Revenue related disclosures

Disaggregation of revenue
The Company largely derives its revenue from non-government customers. Tabulated below is the disaggregation of the revenue:
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Operating revenue
Income from laboratory services
Income from laboratory services 329.64 155.27
Income from sale of pharmacy products
Sale of pharmacy products 73474 6046
Total revenue 1,064.38 215.73
Timing of revenue recognition
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Revenue recognition at a point of time (for cach contract) 1,064.38 215.73
Total 1,064.38 215.73
Contract balances .
‘The following table provides mformation about receivables and contract liabilities from contract with customers: 3” T )
Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2025

For the year ended
31 March 2024

Contract liabilities

Advance from customers

0.56 -

Total contract liabilities

0.56 -

Contract liability is the enti

obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the entity has received consideration from the customer in advance. Contract liabilities are recognised as and when

the performance obligation is satisficd.

Significant changes in the contract liabilities balances during the year are as follows:

Contract liabilities - Advance from customers

Amount

Opening balance as at 01 April 2023

\dd: \ddition during the year

Les

Amount of revenue recognised during the year (215.73)

Closing balance as at 31 March 2024 o

\dd: Addition during the year 1.06+.94
Less: A\mount of revenue recognised during the vear (1.064.38)
0.56

Closing balance as at 31 March 2025

50 5 S,
The aggregate amount of transaction price allocated to the performance obligations (vet to complete) as at 31 March 2025 is % 0.56 millions (31 NMarch 2024: Z Nil). This balance represents the advanct received

from customers (gross) against Laboratory services. The management expects to further bill and collect the remaining balance of total consideration in the coming years. These balances will be recognised as
revenue in future years as per the policy of the Company.

IV Reconciliation of operating revenue recognised with contract revenue:

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Contract revenue 1.077.24 216.07
].ess: Adjustments for discount (0.34)
Income from laboratory services and sale of pharmacy products 215.73

(This space has been infentionally left /1/1‘///(' ) . '




GHL Pharma & Diagnostic Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

(Al amounts are in T millions, unless othenwise stated)

: Note - 42
: A Ageing schedule of capital work-in-progress*
| As at 31 March 2025 Less than 1year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
Projects in progress 3.33 - - 3.33
: Total 3.33 - - - 3.33
As at 31 March 2024 Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
Projects in progress - ~ - = o
Total - = S = -

* “T'here are no such project under capital work-in-progress whose completion is overdue or has exceeded its cost compared to its original plan as of 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024

1ul ‘bl

B Ageing of i assets under d

As at 31 March 2025 Less than 1year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
Projects in progress 1.22 = = - 122
Total 122 - - - 122

As at 31 March 2024 Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
Projects in progre
Total = - > = S

O

Ageing schedule of trade receivables

As at 31 March 2025 O ding from the date of invoice Total
Not due Less than 6 months 6 months-1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years
Undisputed trade receivables — considered good - 16.87 0.43 0.09 - - 17.39
1. \llowance for expected credit loss - - 0.22) (0.09) - - (0.31)
Total - 16.87 0.21 - - - 17.08

As at 31 March 2024 Outstanding from the date of invoice Tortal

Not due Less than 6 months 6 months-1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years

n
b

Undisputed trade receivables — considered good 5 735 . 5 s GH

Less: Alowance for expected credit loss - - - . = = =
Total - 7.55 - - - - 7.55

Notes:
2) There are no debts due by dircctors or other officers of the Company or any of them cither severally or jomtly with any other person or debrs due by firms or private companies respecrively in which amy director is a partner or a direcror or a
member.

b) There are no disputed trade receivables, hence the same is nor disclosed in the ageing of the schedule.

D Ageing schedule of trade payables” =
As at 31 March 2025 Outstanding from the due date of payment . Total
Not due Less than 1year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years
Alicro enterprises and small enterprises 52.27, 0.80 - - - 53.07
Creditors other than micro enterprises and — small 3455 10572 0.07 - 140.69
enterprises
Total 86.82 106.52 0.07 0.35 - 193.76
As at 31 March 2024 Outstanding from the due date of payment
Not due Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
\licro enterprises and small enterprises . 39.68 1.90 0.05 - - 41.03
Creditors other than micro enterprises and - small 4177 40.16 042 - - 91.35
CNICrprises
Total 81.45 51.06 0.47 - - 132.98
~There are i disputed Irade payables. hence the same is not discioved in the ageing schedute.
E Details of p harehold
Name of promoter As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
Number of shares % of total % change during | Number of shares % of total shares % change during the
shares the year year
[Global Health Limired 10,010,000 100.00" 0.00" 10,010,000 100.00"0 0.000

2) The above information is furnished as per shareholder register of the Company as at the vear ended 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024.

b) No changes in promoter's

harcholdings during the respective

&) "Promorers’ for the purpose of this disclosure means promoters as dL fined under Section 2(69) of Companies Act, 2013.

F Details related to borrowings secured against current assets

I'he Company has not given any current assets as security for irs borrowings, hence, this disclosure is not applicable.

(1his spave has been intentionally lejt blank)



GHL Pharma & Diagnostic Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

(All amounts are in T millions, unless otherwise stated)

G Financial ratios

Ratio Measurement unit Numerator Denominator As at As at Change Remarks
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Ratio Ratio
Current ratio Times Current asscrs Current labilities 0.91 Note A below
| Debt-cquity ratio Times Total debt Total equity (153 (191) (19.974) Note A below
[Non-current borrowings + Current - S : i
Ratio Measurement unit Numerator Denominator For the year ended For the year ended Change Remarks
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Ratio Ratio
Debt service coverage ratio Times Earnings before depreciation and amortisation | Inrerest expense (2.62) (37.13) (92,94 )| Note B below

and inreresr
[Loss after rax + Depreciation and amornisanion

pense + Finance
e liabilines)|

osts (e

Juding interest on

(including capiralised)
+ Principal repayment
(including
prepayments)

Rerurn on equity ratio Percenrage

Loss after rax

Aved

age of roral equiry

(1033.00" )

(8934 | Note C below

Inventory furnover ratio I'imes Costs of materials consumed + Purchases of \verage invenrories 6.43 2.13 (202.03" ) | Nore D below
stock-in-trade + Changes in invenrories of
stock-in-rrade
| = Trade receivables turnover ratio Times Revenue from operations Average trade 86.43 57.00 (51.63"0) [Note D below
: ‘Trade payables turnover ratio Times Purchases + other expenses age trade 493 247 (99.56) |Note D below
pavables
Net capital turnover ratio mes Revenue from operations Working capital (16.08) (13.30) (20.91°0) |Note A below

|Current assets -

Current labilin

\ Ner profit ratio Percentage

Loss after tax

Revenue from

54%0)
operations

(60.00°

(79.10°0) | Note E below

Rerurn on capital employed Percenrage

Earnings before interest and tax = Loss before
tax + linance costs

Capital employed
[Toral ass
liabiliti

(A
s - Current
+ Current

borrowings|

(119.00° )

(62. Nore C below

Percenrage

Tnrerest income on bank deposirs

Current and non- 6.52"0

current bank deposits

(Monthly \verage)

6.00%

8.70%|Note A below

Note
A Since the change i ratio is less th:

1 25%, 0 esplanation is required o be furnished

B Change in ratio is on account of expiry of moratorium period and repayments made during the vear.

\
\
‘ Retuen on mnvesrment
\
|
\

in loss

C Change in ratio on account of incre Juring the v

‘ D Change in ratio is on account of increase in operations of pharmac

‘ E Change in ratio is due ro incre:

which the Company ha

started during the previous year.

¢ in business operations which has led to increase in revenue as compared to the losses which has remained srable due to economies of scale.

(This space has been intentionally left blank)




GHL Pharma & Diagnostic Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(All amounts are in ¥ millions, unless otherwise stated)

Note - 43
Capital commitments

Particulars As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024

Capital work-in-progress 0.89 1.30

Note - 44

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has prescribed a requirement for companies under the proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 inserted by the
Companies (Accounts) Amendment Rules, 2021 requiring companies, which uses accounting software for maintaining its books of account, shall use only such accounting software
which has a feature of recording audit trail of each and every transaction, creating an edit log of each change made in the books of account along with the date when such changes were
made and ensuring that the audit trail cannot be disabled.

The Company has used accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of audit trail (edit log) facility and the same was enabled at the application level.
During the year ended 31 March 2025, the Company has not enabled the feature of recording audit trail (edit log) at the database level for the said accounting software to log any direct
data changes since enabling the same all the time consume storage space on the disk and can impact database performance significantly. Further, the Company did not come across any
instance of audit trail feature being tampered with at application level. Furthermore, the Company has also preserved audit trail at application level as per the statutory requirements for
record retention.

Note - 45

During the year, the Company has incurred net loss of Rs. 133.46 millions and negative cash flow from operations of Rs. 76.14 millions and as of that date, the Company has negative
net worth of Rs. 185.37 millions and current liabilities of the Company exceed its current assets by Rs. 66.19 millions. These conditions indicate the existence of uncertainty around
Company's ability to continue as going concern, however, considering future business outlook, expected cash flows and financial support provided by the Holding Company, the
management believes that the Company will be able to realize its assets and discharge its liabilities as and when it falls due for payment in the normal course of business and
accordingly, the going concern basis of accounting is considered appropriate.

Note - 46

The Company does not have any Benami Property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company.

The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with Registrar of Companies beyond the statutory period.
it The Company has not traded or invested in crypto currency or virtual currency during the current year.
iv. The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any person or any entity, including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the intermediary shall:
(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries); or
(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.
v The Company has not received any fund from any person or any entity, including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise)
that the Company shall:
(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by a or on-behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries); or
(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.
vi The Company does not have any transactions and outstanding balances during the current year with companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or section
560 of Companies Act, 1956.
vii The Company has not entered into any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax
assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961.
viti The Company is not declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government authority.
ix The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013.
ix The Company has not entered into any scheme of arrangement during the current year.
x  The Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment (including right-of-use assets) or intangible assets or both during the current year.

Note - 47 .
Previous year figures have been regrouped/reclassified wherever considered necessary and the impact of such reclassifications /regrouping is not material to the overall financial
statements.

The notes to the financial statements including material accounting policies and other explanatory information are an integral part of these financial statements.

These are the notes to the financial statements referred to in our report of even date.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
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